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1 DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

X-EXCELIENT X.OETERIORATEO X.UNALTERED ! . ^ORIGINAL SITE

X_GOOD _RUINS X_ALTERED _MOVED DATE

X—FAIR ^UNEXPOSED

~ OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

BUILDING #1

"The Schoenhofen Brewery Powerhouse (building #1) is trapezoidal
in plan to fit an irregularly shaped lot at South Canalport Avenue,

west 18th Street, and South Normal Avenue. The main facade, five,

bays wide, faces south and fronts on South Canalport Avenue. Another,

major facade, five and one-half bays, faces west onto a private alley

(South Normal Avenue if extended) and arailroad spur track. These
two facades form an acute angle which is cl i pped-of f , creating a

narrow-width wall plane en this five-sided building. The rear wall

on the north faces a narrow private alley and a party wall is to the

east. The building was divided by a masonry fire wall into a power-
house section (northern half) and a warehouse area. A large freight
elevator, a stairway, and a water tank share a square tower enclosure

which is located near the center of the building and extends an

additional fifty feet or so above it.

The building has four stories above a raised basement. The
building's steel and concrete frame is enclosed by curtain walls of

warm hued brick laid in a unique and intricate, crisp and clean

pattern. The front facade has a grouping of windows and piers for

the upper three stories into five rectangular elements.

On the upper three stories the windows and narrow piers are

grouped in a manner that suggests the envelope character of the

exterior walls. The grouping also subtly expresses the structural

frame by acting as voids between the solid structural wall piers.

The first floor is essentially a flat wall plane with single

windows incised in it; it is defined from the upper wall by brick

bands. The inventive wall design works as a unified and harmonious

composition resting lightly on the dressed white limestone base of

the raised basement.

The base of limestone creates a strong horizontal line and ties

the building to the around. The basement window openings repeat the

width of the voids of the rectangular elements above. A major feature

on the front elevation is the continuation of the stone up and around

the major entrance. The effect is that of a vertical stone slab super-

imposed over the center bay of the first floor. The stone is delineated

with fine lines of the key stylized Sullivanesque arch cut into the

center of the "slab". The large and visually powerful arch acts as the

major entry. Although seemingly incorrect, when one considers the

intended use of the building, it is appropriate. Appropriately, this

entry arch is a truck entrance to an interior service stall; the pedes-

trian entrance is a small door, also framed by stone, located in the

conti nued
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"clipped" wall at the street.

The building is flat-roofed, and the parapet cap of a nicely
scaled, strong, heavy-ribbed terra-cotta coping termi nates the
entire .composition beautifully.

Set back and rising from the building is the tower brick
modeled in a manner similar to the upper story rectangular elements
of windows and piers. Atop the towej- was a tall flag pole, since
removed, with only the tripod base remaining to show where it once
had been.

Originally, the powerhouse had a tall, metal, heavily guyed
smokestack of large diameter near the tower ; i t has since been
removed, improving the appearance of the building.

Although the building has undergone alterations, the integrity
of the original design is still intact. None of the changes
seriously mars the original design. A steel fire escape was added
on the front wall. A new freight elevator and brick shaft was added
on the east, replacing an old building sharing the east wall party
wall. The basement windows have been covered with and replaced with
new steel industrial windows. The window head was dropped and new
brickwork matching the existing installed. Fortunately, the new
brick infill panels are recessed so the original window openings are
retai ned.

A low wall of concrete, match ing the color and height of the
building base, was a handsome addition and serves as a protect!" ve
barrier to direct persons exiting the pedestrian door away from the
adjacent spur track.

The building still exhibits the fine qualities and inventiveness
of brick and is visually still an exceptional and significantbuild-
ing design." -Carroll Wm. Westfall (1902 B.P.)
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BUILDING S3

in W10 K UI Vial u anu ici.v _„..- -.

the rectangular windows of the top floor has been enclosed by

(1887 approx.)

BUILDING #4

Building number four, which faces Normal Street, Is
;
one of the

, .1 l. ji.., ,•„ >h. <;rhnonhnfpn Brewery Complex and was built

BUILDING #5

Built in 1887, building number five appears almost as an

itior, to the north side of building number four. This tall



UNITED STATES DEI'ARTMEN I 01 Tilt INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY

RECEIVED

DATE ENTERED

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER

four story brick tower-like structure has a single large pointed
arch similar to the central arch of building four which expands
the total width of the Romanesque facade. The second story
similarly has a single version of the tall flat arches seen in its
neighboring building. The third floor has a large wide rectangular
opening and the top floor has a large round arch. Again, all of
these openings have been bricked in and various new windows and a
door set in place. (dated 1887)

BUILDING #6

Buildings numbered six and eight were built as additions onto
the backs of buildings three, four, five, and seven. Both are brick
structures whose windows and doorways now altered in the usual manner
(bricked-in with smaller doors and windows enclosed) are round-arched
and flat-arched in the Romanesque style of the parent buildings.
However, since built as additions to existing buildings they are free
of ornamentation. (1890 approx.)

BUILDING #7

Here again we see, in building number seven, a Romanesque
facade like its thr.ee southern neighbors, building three, four, and
five. This 1887 three story brick structure, however, is simpler in
its design and less pretentious in its use of arches. The long
narrow windows and doorways all are half-arched and distantly spaced.
Missing are the Romanesque cornice and stone stringcourse dividing
the floors. Instead, the crowning cornice of this building is a
horizontal band of long flat cement blocks forming a narrow border
around the top of the facade. Interestingly, spaced between each
window of the second and third floor is a circular brick relief
resembling a "porthole". Except for the addition of a fire escape
and a bricked-in third story. window, the facade has remained essen-
tially intact. (1887 B.P.)

BUILDING IB

(see BUILDING #6)
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BUILDING #9

Building number nine, bui-1 1 in 1909, on what is now Normal St.

like later buildings-comprising- the Brewery Complex, was built in

the new straightforward "Chicago Commercial Style". This three
story brick structure wi th embossed masonry base is void of all

embellishment. The vertical supports of the building proportion it

into six even groupings within which the long rectangular windows
are evenly spaced. Small square niches act as a dimensional string-
course to divide the first and second floors. No doorways exist
on the facade and a number of windows were replaced with concrete
block. "(1909, B.P. )

BUILDING #10
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ndows; three of them abreast. Of the half-arched windows
central windows above the door remains, the others

bricked in. {1891 , B.P.

)

BUILDING #11

Building number eleven, the long rectangular two story
building on S. Canal St., follows its predecessor, the 1902
Schoenhofen Brewery powerhouse on Canalport, in its break with the
Romanesque facades of the earlier Schoenhofen buildings. Similarly,
it has straight lines and is discreet in decoration. The 1 arge
wide rectangular windows, evenly spaced beams, and the plain yet
visually strong stringcourse separating the stories creates a
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building of solid geometric pattern. Reinforcing this geometry is

the bold horizontal plane provided by the light-colored embossed
masonry wall which makes up its base. Few modifications occur to

this building and no alterations are noticeable on the facade.

(1905, B.P.

)

BUILDING #16
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BUILDING #15

Sitting next to the Schoenhofen stable on the south side is a

tall six story structure, building number fifteen.The straight
lines, minimal ornamentation, rectangular design of doors and

windows, clue us who have no record of its building date that it

probably is the youngest building in the line of buildings on the

west side of Normal St. and could well have been built between
1890 and 1905. The facade is brick, the sides concrete block.
Stone stringcourses separate the second and third floors from the

floors above and below while a third stringcourse separates the
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top floor from all below. The windows which all still remain are
deeply recessed. The building has remained well intact.

BUILDING #12, #13, & #14 (contrary to Sanborn, these comprise only
one building. Will be referred to as building #14)

Built in 1878 (B.P.), building number fourteen, like the
other buildings in the complex built before the turn of the
century, is Romanesque in its style. The building is very inter-
esting in its decorative relief-like use of bricks. The flat-arched
windows of the second and thi rd floors and the round portholes
above the third floor sre each set centrally within a recessed
rectangular plane making then appear framed. A variety of round
and flat arches line the base floor. All the windows on the upper
floors are now filled with brick or cemsnt block. The many arches
on the base floor have also seen change. They too have been
enclosed either in part or in whole and new doors and windows
installed. A Romanesque frieze lines the top of the building.

BUILDING #19

Building number nineteen, the Schoenhofen warehouse built in
1910 on South Clinton St., is a product of the new attitude toward
design in commercial building generated with the growth of the
skyscraper and the bold new spirit of the Chicago school. This
seven story brick structure whose vertical lines follow its
concealed skeletal structure reflects its function following form
in a plain unpretentious manner, with this in mind, the appear-
ance of windows almost exclusively on the front facade is under-
standable. Few alterations can be seen in the building' except
for several changes in the second story windows that have been
modi f ied from the original long rectangular windows to smaller
ones. (1910, B.P. )

BUILDING #18

Built in 1908, (B. P.), building number eighteen is very
similar to building eleven built in the previous year. However,
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unlike eleven, eighteen has three stories. Yet the building appears
horizontally divided. The string-course that separates the top floor
from the bottom is almost identical. Like its 1905 counterpart,
bui.lding eighteen is a long rectangular brick structure whose
geometric, almost grid-like, design displays large wide windows,
evenly spaced vertical beams, and embossed masonry base. In this
base, however, unlike eleven, are squeezed-in windows that are
now boarded up. Except for this change in these windows, no notice-
able alterations appear on the facade.

BUILDING #17

Building seventeen, originally built in 1880, (B.P.), saw
alterations and changes in 1887 and 1895. This long, brick, two
story structure's design illustrates the architectural trans-
ition that took place at the turn of the century. The building
is very functional in design, simple, and almost free of ornament,
but the tell-tale flat-arched windows are signs of an earlier era.
Many windows remain intact, but a number have also been changed
or bricked-in. One of the newer additions is a skylight atop the
northern end of the building.

BUILDING #2
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er until 1915 when it became the office
Schoenhofen Brewing Company. The stable was

architect Otto Hatz and has much of the

its design intact (eg. original wooden hay

From Chicago 1 90 - A History of the City o f Chicago:

"The Peter Schoenhofen Brewing Company was established by

the late Peter Schoenhofen in 1859, on Canalport Avenue, between

Seward (now Normal) and Eighteenth Streets, the site of its

present location.
"There are few perfect breweries in the world, but the

Peter Schoenhofen Brewing Company prides itself on having one

of them. It not only prides itself on its immensity, but on the

perfection of its equipments, and if there is a piece of mech-

anism which overshadows all others for ingenuity, it is here

that it is to be found."

Around the Schoenhofen brewery, a community of German

Immigrant laborers began to develop. By the 1870's and 1880 s,

the German community was joined by a significant number of

Czech and Lithuanian immigrants. Soon a conjested colony called

Pilsen sprang up between the brewery and Ashland Ave., providing

the necessary labor for the burgeoning brewing industry.

To this day, the Pilsen area is a major port-of -entry into

American Culture for countless immigrants, now primarily of

Mexican and Latin American origin, some of whom still depend

for their livelihood on the various light industries which

presently occupy those buildings in the brewery complex that

are still in use.
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